Impact of short-term aircraft noise on cardiovascular disease risk in the area surrounding London Heathrow airport: the RISTANCO epidemiological study

Xiangpu Gong,^{1,2} Nicole Itzkowitz,³ Calvin Jephcote,¹ Kathryn Adams,¹ Glory O Atilola,³ John Gulliver,^{1,2} Marta Blangiardo³ and Anna Hansell^{1,2*}

Published December 2024 DOI: 10.3310/UTCE9104

Plain language summary

Impact of short-term aircraft noise on cardiovascular disease risk in the area surrounding London Heathrow airport: the RISTANCO epidemiological study

Public Health Research 2024; Vol. 12: No. 13

DOI: 10.3310/UTCE9104

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

¹Centre for Environmental Health and Sustainability, University of Leicester, Leicester, UK

²The National Institute of Health and Care Research (NIHR) Health Protection Research Unit in Environmental Exposure and Health at the University of Leicester, Leicester, UK

³Medical Research Council Centre for Environment and Health, Department of Epidemiology and Biostatistics, School of Public Health, Imperial College London, London, UK

^{*}Corresponding author ah618@leicester.ac.uk

Plain language summary

Previous studies have found links between long-term aircraft noise exposure and heart disease or stroke, but there are very few such studies on short-term noise exposure.

We first looked at how aircraft noise varies across the day in areas affected by noise from aircraft arriving at and departing from London Heathrow airport. We used standard noise models that use information such as flight paths, type of aircraft and weather conditions to estimate aircraft noise levels at different times of day near Heathrow airport in 2014–18. We found that the daytime periods 7 a.m.–7 p.m., with the largest number of flights, had higher noise levels than evening or night-time and higher numbers of noisy flights. However, the early morning (6 a.m.–7 a.m. had the highest average noise levels. Night-time aircraft noise levels were lower but fluctuated more than at any other time of day.

We investigated inequalities in noise exposures by comparing wealthy with less wealthy areas and found that wealthier areas tended to have lower aircraft noise levels, especially at night.

We then examined whether higher noise levels at particular times of day in an area were linked with higher hospital admissions and deaths from heart disease or stroke (cardiovascular disease). We saw a small increased risk of hospital admissions for cardiovascular disease if there were high evening noise levels the previous day. This may be linked to sleep disturbance. Men aged over 65 years also showed increased risks associated with daytime aircraft noise.

Finally, we assessed whether areas prone to changing aircraft noise patterns (i.e. with relief periods from aircraft noise) affected the increased risk of cardiovascular disease in areas with higher noise in the evenings and found the higher risks were only seen in areas with more constant noise levels. More research is needed to investigate potential health benefits of relief periods with lower noise.

Public Health Research

ISSN 2050-439X (Online)

A list of Journals Library editors can be found on the NIHR Journals Library website

Public Health Research (PHR) was launched in 2013 and is indexed by Europe PMC, NCBI Bookshelf, DOAJ, INAHTA, Ulrichsweb™ (ProQuest LLC, Ann Arbor, MI, USA) and MEDLINE.

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

The full PHR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/phr.

Criteria for inclusion in the Public Health Research journal

Manuscripts are published in *Public Health Research* (PHR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the PHR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

Reviews in *Public Health Research* are termed 'systematic' when the account of the search appraisal and synthesis methods (to minimise biases and random errors) would, in theory, permit the replication of the review by others.

PHR programme

The Public Health Research (PHR) programme, part of the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR), is the leading UK funder of public health research, evaluating public health interventions, providing new knowledge on the benefits, costs, acceptability and wider impacts of non-NHS interventions intended to improve the health of the public and reduce inequalities in health. The scope of the programme is multi-disciplinary and broad, covering a range of interventions that improve public health.

For more information about the PHR programme please visit the website: https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/funding-programmes/public-health-research.htm

This article

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the PHR programme as award number 15/192/13. The contractual start date was in November 2017. The draft manuscript began editorial review in November 2022 and was accepted for publication in May 2023. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The PHR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' manuscript and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the draft document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this article.

This article presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

This article was published based on current knowledge at the time and date of publication. NIHR is committed to being inclusive and will continually monitor best practice and guidance in relation to terminology and language to ensure that we remain relevant to our stakeholders.

Copyright © 2024 Gong et al. This work was produced by Gong et al. under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaptation in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Newgen Digitalworks Pvt Ltd, Chennai, India (www.newgen.co).